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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY FINANCIAL PLANNING

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. COMM ITTEE OF COU NC[ I_

February 3, 2023

To: Ken Suer, Chairman
Financial Planning Committee of City Council

From: Brian Riblet, City Manager lg\L?_
Subject: Financial Planning Committee Meeting February 6, 2023

As a reminder, the Financial Planning Committee is scheduled to meet on Monday,
February 6 at 4:30 p.m. at City Hall. The agenda for this meeting is as follows:

1. December 2022 and January 2023 Income Tax Reports - Please see the
December 2022 and January 2023 Income Tax Reports attached for the

Committee’s review and discussion. Staff will be prepared to answer any
questions on this report at Monday’s meeting.

2. Financial Statements for the Community Improvement Corporation - The
Finance Department has compiled the financial statements which will be
submitted to the State of Ohio. The Finance Director will be prepared to
explain the major transactions reflected in the Community Improvement
Corporation’s financial statements. In addition, a draft of the Corporation’s
tax return for 2022 has been prepared for your review.

3. Review of 2022 Revenues and Expenditures - The Finance Department
closed the City’s 2022 financial books on January 12, 2023. Prepared for

your information is a recap of variances for the major revenues and
expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2022. The Finance Director
will be prepared to explain estimated to actual revenue and expenditure
variances.

4. Other Business - The purpose of this agenda item is to provide an
opportunity to discuss any issue that may be on your mind, give feedback
and insight into the team’s performance, ask questions and provide
constructive suggestions to enhance the team’s performance in the future.

Also, attached are the minutes from the December 5, 2022 meeting of the Financial
Planning Committee for review and approval at Monday’s meeting.

Should you have questions or concerns regarding the above agenda items or have
additional items to be discussed at the meeting, please do not hesitate to contact me.

¢: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Chris Bigham, Interim Finance Director
Connie Gaylor, Executive Assistant/Clerk of Council, File

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « montgomeryohio.org ¢« 513-891-2424



@ FINANCIAL PLANNING COMMITTEE OF CITY COUNCIL

CITY OF
10101 M Road « M , Ohio 45242
MONTGOMERY 813 8912424 - Fax (575 8012498

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

AGENDA
February 6, 2022
City Hall
4:30 P.M.
1. Call to Order
2. Guests and Residents
3. Communications
4, New Business
a. December 2022 and January 2023 Income Tax Reports
b. Financial Statements for the Community Improvement Corporation
c. Review of 2022 Revenues and Expenditures
5. Approval of Minutes: December 5, 2022

6. Other Business

7. Adjournment



@

CITY OF

MONTGOMERY FINANCIAL PLANNING

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE. CO M M 'TTE E O F CO U N Cl |_

February 1, 2023

To: Brian Riblet, City Manager

From: Christopher Bigham, Interim Finance Director

Subject: 2022 December Income Tax Variance Report and Year End Report

Background
This memo is to provide a year-end update on income taxes received for FY 2022 and
report on variances for December.

Financial Impact

For the month of December, the City’s total income tax receipts were $1,036,401 which
is an increase of $167,563 or 19.29% when compared to the 2021 December collections
of $868,808. We finished the year at 13.43% over 2021 collections.

2022 2021 % Change
MTD December
Actuals 1,036,401 868,808 19.3%
YTD Collections 12,289,752 10,835,073 13.4%
YTD Actual YTD Estimate % Change
2022 Estimated
Collections 12,289,752 10,500,000 17.0%

A breakdown by category for December 2022 is as follows:

Business- In December 2022, net profits from businesses located within or doing
business within Montgomery were $376,886. This is an increase of $332,014 or 740%
when compared to December 2021 collections of $44,872. A large, estimated tax
payment was remitted by one of our Montgomery businesses which accounts for the
majority of the increase.

Resident- Revenues of $78,110 were collected in December 2022 from residents living
in Montgomery, which is a decrease of $191,696 or (71%) when compared to December
2021 collections of $269,806. The variance is attributed to several large tax payments
that were remitted in December of 2021. Individual revenue is up by 2% for the year.

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « montgomeryohio.org * 513-891-2424



Withholding- December 2022 withholding collections were $581,406; an increase of
$27,276 or 4.9% when compared to December 2021 collections of $554,130. We
finished the year 8.8% over 2021 collections.

The following schedule breaks down collections by source and provides a graph
comparing actual and estimated income tax revenues for 2021 and 2022. There is also
an End of Month report attached showing the comparison between month-to-date and
year-to-date.

c: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Connie Gaylor, Administrative Coordinator
File

City of Montgomery « 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - (513) 891-2424
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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY FINANCIAL PLANNING

A CHARMING PAST, A GLOWING FUTURE. CO M M |TTEE OF CO U N CI L

February 1, 2023

To: Brian Riblet, City Manager

From: Ch%her Bigham, Finance Director/Tax Commissioner

Subject: 2023 January Income Tax Variance Report

Year to Date

For the month of January, the City’s total income tax receipts were $1,153,187 which is
a decrease of $97,510 or (7.8%) when compared to the 2022 January collections of
$1,250,697.

2023 2022 % Change
MTD January Actuals 1,153,187 1,250,697 (7.8%)
YTD Collections 1,153,187 1,250,697 (7.8%)
YTD Actual YTD Estimate % Change
2022 Estimated
Collections 1,153,187 1,139,796 117%

A breakdown by category for January 2023 and an explanation of the variance is as
follows:

Business- In January 2023, net profits from businesses located within or doing business
within Montgomery were $24,107. This is a decrease of $1,223 or 4.8% when compared
to January 2022 collections of $25,330. This is only a slight decrease and will be
monitored monthly.

Resident- Revenues of $188,553 were collected in January 2023 from residents living
in Montgomery, which is an increase of $37,286 or 24.7% when compared to January
2022 collections of $151,267. The variance is likely attributed to a large, estimated
payment remitted by one individual.

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » montgomeryohio.org * 513-891-2424



Withholding- January 2023 withholding collections were $940,527; a decrease of
$133,573 or (12.4%) when compared to January 2022 collections of $1,074,100.
Withholdings collected in January of 2022 were higher than a typical January
collection month. January 2023 is trending towards a normal collection month which
results in a negative variance when compared to the prior year. Total collections are
still trending positive when compared to the monthly estimate.

The following schedule breaks down collections by source and provides a graph
comparing actual and estimated income tax revenues for 2022 and 2023. There is also
an End of Month report attached showing the comparison between month-to-date and
year-to-date.

¢: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Connie Gaylor, Administrative Coordinator
Laura Braun, Finance Specialist

City of Montgomery » 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 - (513) 891-2424



Withholding- January 2023 withholding collections were $940,527; a decrease of
$133,573 or (12.4%) when compared to January 2022 collections of $1,074,100.
Withholdings collected in January of 2022 were higher than a typical January
collection month. January 2023 is trending towards a normal collection month which
results in a negative variance when compared to the prior year. Total collections are
still trending positive when compared to the monthly estimate.

The following schedule breaks down collections by source and provides a graph
comparing actual and estimated income tax revenues for 2022 and 2023. There is also
an End of Month report attached showing the comparison between month-to-date and
year-to-date.

¢: Financial Planning Committee Members (2)
Mayor and City Council Members (3)
Connie Gaylor, Executive Assistant/Clerk of Council
Laura Braun, Finance Specialist

City of Montgomery * 10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « (513) 891-2424
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CITY OF

LS HLE DN T8 MEMORANDUM

February 1, 2023

TO: B%Riblet, City Manager
FROM: Christopher Bigham, Acting Finance Director

SUBJECT: FY 2022 Year End Summary Reports

Background

This memo is to provide a year-end update on the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget. Finance
closed the year and have included summary reports for your review.

Financial Impact

The General Fund year-end balance closed at $15,997,304. The FY 2023 Budget has
an estimated beginning balance of $14.2 million so the actual beginning balance for FY
2023 is about $1.8 million higher than the estimate.

General Fund Revenues are up $3.2 million over the estimate including $1.1 million for
a transfer in. The true positive variance is about $2.1 million after excluding the transfer
in amount. Income taxes are $1.2 million over the estimate, property taxes are up
$236K, permit fees are up $175K and miscellaneous revenue is up $333K, primarily is
due to interest income.

General Fund Expenditures include transfers out and the year ended with $1.25 million
in appropriation savings. All departments were within their appropriation and most
appropriation savings is due to vacant positions in departments and savings in
contractual services for Community Development.

The All-Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance Report, which
includes the General Fund, shows a year end fund balance of $46.7 million, a decrease
of $8.2 million from the beginning of the year primarily due to the planned spending
in various capital projects including general capital projects and the Montgomery
Quarter fund.

Recommendation

Staff requests the Financial Planning Committee approve the year end reports. Staff is
available to answer any questions.

City of Montgomery
10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 » montgomeryohio.org « 513-891-2424



City of Montgomery
All-Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance (Unaudited)
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Description Beginning Revenue Unexpended Encumbrance Year End
Balance Balance Unencumbered
Balance

101 GENERAL FUND 18,411,382 14,804,077 16,887,571 16,227,889 230,596 15,997,303

209 MEMORIAL FUND 80,226 68,756 72,832 56,150 0 56,150

210 PARKS & RECREATION 10,334 0 0 10,334 0 10,334
FUNDRAISING

214 OPIOD SETTLEMENT fUND 0 4,251 ] 4,251 0 4,251

215 LAW ENFORCEMENT 153,494 269,209 15,607 407,096 27,528 379,568

216 DRUG ENFCRCEMENT FUND 5,634 0 400 5,234 0 5,234

217 DUI ENFORCEMENT 15,064 573 378 15,260 0 15,260
EDUCATION FUND

218 MAYOR'S COURT 62,731 6,250 7,369 61,612 3,800 57,812
TECHNGCLOGY FUND

219 COMMUNITY ORIENTED 91,075 201,708 144,059 148,723 0 148,723
POLICING

220 LAW ENFORCEMENT 15,520 11,475 11,475 15,520 0 15,520
ASSISTANCE FUN

221 CORONAVIRUS RELIEF FUND 548,182 573,973 1,122,165 0 0 o]

222 PANDEMIC RELIEF FUND 0 591,237 0 591,237 0 591,237

223 FIRE DEPARTMENT FUND 11,991,319 5,882,890 3,702,667 14,171,542 487,131 13,684,411

227 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 64,243 9,000 ¢} 73,243 0 73,243
AREA |

228 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 138,668 24,225 50 162,843 0 162,843
AREA I

228 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 68,846 4,500 2,038 71,308 0 71,308
AREA I

230 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT 31,814 4,500 140 36,174 0 36,174
AREA IV

261 STREET MAINTENANCE & 2,042,380 1,486,977 1,062,811 2,466,555 25,968 2,440,587
REPAIR

265 STATE HIGHWAY FUND 112,456 46,330 35,180 123,588 0 123,586

265 PERMISSIVE MVL FUND 251,980 80,734 74,611 258,103 14,211 243,892

275 MUNICIPAL POOL FUND 298,698 303,281 221,551 380,429 14,800 365,629

322 SPEC ASSESS BOND 0 0 0 0 0 0
RETIREMENT

324 GENERAL BOND RETIREMENT 720,831 651,625 152,282 1,220,174 0 1,220,174

328 RESERVE MONT BOND 211,728 183,280 395,008 0 o] Q
RETIREMENT

328 MONTGOMERY QUARTER TIF 2,793,539 23,989 663,893 2,153,635 0 2,153,635
FUND

331 VINTAGE CLUB TIF FUND 2,720,745 2,723,355 2,230,300 3,213,800 0 3,213,800

332 VINTAGE CLUB NORTH TIF 165,515 719,110 525,285 359,340 0 359,340
FUND

410 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 4,239,982 2,576,472 2,420,141 4,396,313 2,174,947 2,221,367

460 HERITAGE DISTRICT FUND 200,471 882 61,109 140,254 13,453 126,801

461 TRIANGLE TIF FUND 76,004 175,986 170,833 81,156 0 81,156

463 VINTAGE CLUB CAPITAL 1,356,270 15,814 31,363 1,340,721 756,083 584,638
CONSTRUCT

464 MONTGOMERY QUARTER 1,857,249 882,473 2,502,234 237,489 237,489 0
CONSTR FUND

465 MONTGOMERY QUARTER 751,401 0 535,465 215,936 208,149 7,786
ROUNDABOUT

480 DOWNTOWN IMPROVEMENTS 3,666,108 4,526,541 6,211,289 1,981,359 1,471,139 510,220
FUND

485 ARTS & AMENITIES FUND 647,484 31177 19,795 658,876 V] 658,876

546 TRUST REIMBURSEMENTS 158,829 64,076 66,500 156,405 0 156,405

FUND



City of Montgomery
All-Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balance (Unaudited)
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

601 STATE FEES FUND 3,511 9,505 9,948 3,068 a 3,068

836 HISTORICAL TRUST FUND 0 0 0 0 0 0

840 CEMETERY EXPENDABLE 470,669 92,225 58,204 504,690 895 503,795
TRUST FUND

875 COMPENSATED ABSENCE 433,445 61,000 105,245 389,200 0 389,200
FUND

890 UNCLAIMED MONEYS FUND 3,106 2,152 1,576 3,682 3,682

All Funds Total 37.113.618 39,621,380 52,343,209 5.666.189 46,677,020



City of Montgomery
General Fund Carryover Report (Unaudited)
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Beginning Balance, 1/1/22 S 18,411,392
Plus Revenues and Transfers In S 14,804,077
Total Amount Avaialable S 33,215,470
Less FY2022 Expenditures and Transfers Qut $ 16,890,766

Less Prior Year Expenditures S 96,804 S 16,987,570
Unexpended Balance S 16,227,900
Less Encumbrances (Current and Prior Year) S 230,596
Unencumbered Year End Fund Balance, 12/31/22 S 15,997,304

City of Montgomery
General Fund Revenue Report (Unaudited)
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Revenue Category 22 Estimate 22 Actual

Earnings Tax $ 8,000,000 $ 9,213,567 1,213,567
Property Tax 2,612,884 2,848,613 235,729
Fees and Charges 125,450 207,195 81,745
Franchise Fees 162,000 160,036 (1,964)
Misc 245,675 579,107 333,432
Other Taxes 20,100 38,828 18,728
Permit Fees 252,050 427,804 175,754
State Shared 165,000 237,191 72,191
Transfers In* 500 1,091,737 1,091,237
Grand Total $ 11,583,659 $ 14,804,077 S 3,220,418

*Includes $1.09 million as a transfer in from the ARPA Fund that was subsequently
transferred out.



City of Montgomery
General Fund Expenditures Report (Unaudited)
For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022

Department Revised 22 Actual Expense Variance Year End Encumbrance Unencumbered
by Balance
Appropriation

Police $ 4,023,476 S 3,764,462 S 259,014 § 47,080 S 211,934
Disaster Services 9,300 5,325 3,975 - 3,975
Public Health and Welfare 59,333 55,842 3,491 - 3,491
Recreation 372,162 332,761 39,401 500 38,901
City Parks 644,690 513,218 131,472 20,370 111,102
Swaim and Terwilliger Lodges 72,700 43,132 29,568 25,961 3,607
Special Events 134,000 115,142 18,859 2,523 16,335
Landmarks Commission 14,250 7,643 6,607 - 6,607
City Beautiful 152,263 128,533 23,730 18,661 5,069
Community Development 1,098,560 795,600 302,960 221 302,738
Planning Commission 10,400 3,903 6,497 - 6,497
Historical Buildings Operations 48,900 36,047 12,853 - 12,853
City Administration 657,681 641,786 15,895 - 15,855
Finance 884,474 795,343 89,131 - 89,131
Legal Administration 240,500 170,976 69,524 1,965 67,559
City Council 31,214 20,590 10,624 - 10,624
Mayor's Court 109,280 105,551 3,729 - 3,729
Civil Service Commission 5,150 5,024 126 = 126
Public Works Administration 815,227 758,571 56,656 4,080 52,576
Community and Info Systems 629,812 564,617 65,195 43,095 22,100
General Government® 8,342,037 8,026,700 315,337 45,473 269,864
Grand Total S 18,355,409 S 16,890,766 S 1,464,642 S 209,929 S 1,254,713

! General Fund Appropriation increased by $1.3 million, with $1.09 million related to ARPA funding.
Includes a transfer out of $1.09 million for ARPA related funding and a one time $4.5 million transfer out for MQ.
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CITY OF

MONTGOMERY

A CHARMING PAST. A GLOWING FUTURE.

January 26, 2023

To: Brian Riblet, City Manager
From: Christopher Bigharﬁ,’?nterim Finance Director

Subject: Financial Statements for the Montgomery Community Improvement
Corporation

Please find attached the financial statements for the Montgomery Community
Improvement Corporation which must be filed with the State Auditor’'s Office within 120
days after the end of the fiscal year.

The Statement of Net Position reflects that the corporation had assets net of liabilities
of $2,102,685.34 as of December 31, 2022.

The Statement of Financial Activities reflects Grants Received of $175000, Interest
Income of $0, Grants Awarded of $89,794 and Professional Fees expensed in the amount
of $36,000 for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Statement of Cash Flow reflects the corporation increased its cash position from
$2,056,479.45 to $2,123,757.45 as a result of Grants Received. Funds are in a demand
deposit account at Fifth Third Bank.

Please contact me if there are questions or should you require additional information.

10101 Montgomery Road, Montgomery, Ohio 45242 « montgomeryohio.org * 513-891-2424



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION
Statement of Financial Activities and Changes in Net Position

Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

PUBLIC SUPPORT AND REVENUE
Interest Income
Grants Received

TOTAL REVENUE

EXPENSES:
Grants Awarded
Professional Fees
TOTAL EXPENSES
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET POSITION END OF YEAR

2022 2021
$ . -
$ 175,000.00 .
175,000.00 -
89,794.11 41,706.61
36,000.00 36,000.00
125,794.11 77,706.61
49,205.89 (77,706.61)
2,053,479.45 2,131,186.06
$2,102,685.34 2,053,479.45

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Payments to Vendors
Cash Payments to Grantees
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Earnings on Investments
Grants Received
Transfers In

NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH

NET CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET CASH AT END OF YEAR

2022 2021
$  (36,000.00) $ (36,000.00)
(71,722.00) (41,706.61)
(107,722.00) (77.706.61)
175,000.00 .
175,000.00 .
$  67,278.00 $ (77,706.61)
2,056,479.45 2,134,186.06
$2,123,757.45 $  2,056,479.45

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



MONTGOMERY COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT CORPORATION

Statement of Net Position

Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITES
Accounts Payable

Grants Payable
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITES

NET POSITION
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

2022

021

$2,123,757.45 $ 2,056,479.45
$2,123,757.45 b 2,056,479.45
$ 3,000.00 A 3,000.00
$ 18,072.11

$ 21,072.11 § 3,000.00
$2,102,685.34 $ 2,053,479.45
$2,102,685.34 b 2,053,479.45

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.



Community Improvement Corporation of the City of Montgomery, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Note 1 - Reporting Entity

The Community Improvement Corporation of Montgomery, Ohio (the Corporation) was created in
accordance with Chapter 1702 of the Ohio Revised Code. The Corporation was created to assist the City
of Montgomery in the revitalization and enhancement of property, and to advance, encourage and
promote economic, commercial, and civic development. The Corporation has been designated as the City
of Montgomery’s agent for economic development.

Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the Corporation have been prepared in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statement presentation follows recommendations of the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in its Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) 117, Financial Statement for Not-For-
Profit Organizations. Under SFAS No. 117, the Corporation is required to report information regarding its
financial position and activities according to three classes of net position: unrestricted net position,
temporarily restricted net position and permanently restricted net position. As of December 31, 2022, the
net position of the Corporation is unrestricted.

Federal Income Tax

The Corporation is exempt from federal income tax under Section 501 of the Internal Revenue Code.

Note 3 — Cash and Cash Equivalents
Deposits with Financial Institutions

On December 31, 2021 and 2022, the carrying amount of all Corporation deposits was $2,056,479.45 and
$2,123,757.45 respectively.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure, the City’s deposits may not be returned to
it. Ohio law requires that deposits be either insured or be protected by eligible securities pledged and
deposited with a qualified trustee as security for repayment or participation in the Ohio Pooled Collateral
System (OPCS), a collateral pool of eligible securities deposited with a qualified trustee and pledged to
the Treasurer of State to secure the repayment of all public monies deposited in the financial institution.

At year end the bank balance was $2,123,757.45. Federal depository insurance covered $250,000 of the
bank balance and $1,876,757 was collateralized with securities held in the Ohio Pooled Collateral
System.



Community Improvement Corporation of the City of Montgomery, Ohio

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Note 4 — Related Parties

The Mayor and City Council comprise the Board for the Community Improvement Corporation of the
City of Montgomery, Ohio.

The City of Montgomery provided grant funding in the amount of $175,000 to fund operating expenses
during 2022,

The City of Montgomery provided no grants for the acquisition of real estate to be sold for residential and
commercial development in order to stimulate economic development in the downtown area of the City in
2022.

Note 6 — Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

In 2015, the Corporation entered a contract with DSD Advisors to support the Corporation’s goal of
developing the Montgomery Quarter Project. The Corporation agreed to pay $3,000 per month for the
term of the contract in exchange for the agreed upon services.

Grants Payable

In 2014, the Corporation initiated a program to promote the preservation of historic buildings in the City
of Montgomery. The historical building preservation program is designed to allow property owners of
eligible structures to apply for a 50% matching grant up to a maximum of $15,000 and a minimum of
$2,000 per grantee.

In 2022, the Corporation also initiated a program to promote the preservation of commercial buildings in
the City of Montgomery. This program is designed to allow property owners of eligible structures to
apply for a 50% matching grant up to a maximum of $25,000 and a minimum of $5,000 per grantee.

As of December 31, 2022, the Corporation has awarded grants in the amount of $89,794.11 for the two
programs. As of December 31, 2022, the Corporation had outstanding liabilities of $18,072.11 for the
historic preservation grant program.

Note 7 — Contingent Liabilities

Management believes that there are no pending claims or lawsuits.



990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax | omB No. 1545-0047
Form
Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations) 2 @22
Department of the Treasury Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2022 calendar year, or tax year beg_;inning January 01 , 2022, and ending December 31 ,20 22
B Check if applicable: C Name of organization Montgomery Community Improvement Corporation D Employer identification number
[ Address change Doing business as 31-1132938
|:| Name change Number and street {or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
O initial return 10101 Montgomery Road 513-792-8349
D Final return/terminated City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
[[] Amended return Montgomery, Ohio 45242 G Gross receipts $
[J Application pending |F Name and address of principal officer: Lee Ann Bissmeyer, President H(a) Is this a group rstum for subordinates? [_] Yes [¥] No
10101 Montgomery Road. Montgomery, Ohio 45242 H(b) Are all subordinates included? [(Ives [Ino
I Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) |:| 501(c) { } (insert no.) [:l 4947(a)(1) or |:| 527 If "No,” attach a list. See instructions.
J  Website: H(e) Group exemption number
K Form of organization: [v] Corporation [ | Trust [ ] Assaciation [ ] Other | L Year of formation: 1984 | M State of legal domicile: Oh
3 Summary
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: Promote Economic and Civic Development
g in the City of Montgomery, Ohio i i e
1
§ 2 Check this box []if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
& | 8 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1a). . . . . . . . . 3
ﬁ 4  Number of independent voting members of the governing bedy (Part Vi, line1b) . . . . 4
& | 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2022 (PartV, lne2a) . . . . . 5
:E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if necessary) . . “ B . 6
< | 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C) line 12 o meom W W F % 7a 0
- b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line11 . . . . . . . 7b
Prior Year Current Year
o | 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIll, lineth). . . . . . . . . . . . 175,000
g 9  Program service revenue (Part VIIl, line 2g)
% | 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d}
= | 41 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8c, 9¢, 10¢, and 11e) .
12  Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 175,000
13  Grants and similar amounts paid (Part [X, column (A), lines 1-3) . . . . . 89,794
14  Benefits paid to or for members (Part X, column (A), line 4) y
@ 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column {A), lines 5-10}
Y | 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e)
& b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25)
ul 17  Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f-24e) . . . . . 36,000
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 {must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) . 125,794
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line12 . . . . . . . . 49,206
58 Beginning of Current Year End of Year
8520 Totalassets (PartX, line16) . . . . . . . . . . . ... .. 2,056,479 2,123,757
<2 21  Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) . . . . o 3,000 21,072
%é Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from !lne 20 e e . 2,053,479 2,102,685

ms:gnature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaraticn of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here
Type or print name and title
" Print/Type preparer’s name Preparer’'s signature Date i | PTIN
Paid Check [] if
seff-employed

Preparer
Use Only [rms name Firm's EIN

Firm's address Phone no.
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? Seeinstructions . . . . . . . . . . . [J1Yes [INo

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions. Cat. No. 11282Y Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) Page 2
Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part lII O
1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission:
The mission of the MCIC is to provide economic and civic initiatives in the City of Montgomery

2  Did the organization undertake any signiﬁcant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior Form 990 or 990-EZ? 5 % Yes No
If “Yes,” describe these new services on Schedu!e e

3 Did the organlzatlon cease conductlng, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
services? . : ; [JYes No
If “Yes,” describe these changes on Schedule 0.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: . )(Expenses$ _ : 36,000 including grantsof $ )(Revenue$ )

In 2015, the MCIC entered into an agreement with DSD Advisors to support the goal of developing the Gate Redevelopment/
Montgomery Quarter Area. DSD Advisors work with the CIC to promote the interest of the CIC on redeveloping vacant
land and brmgmg jobs to the City of Montgomery. e )
4b (Code: )(Expenses$ 4979 including grantsof $ ) (Revenue$ )
In 2014, the CIC initiated a program to promote the preservation of historic buildings in the City of Montgomery. The Board
allocated funds to the program whereby eligible structures would be given a 50% matching grant up to a maximum of $15,000
and a minimum of $2,000 per grant for eligible improvements.
4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ 40,000 including grantsof ) (Revenue$ )
In 2022, the CIC initiated a program to promote the preservation of commermal buildings in the City of Montgomery. The Board
allocated funds to the program whereby elegible commercial structures would be given a 50% matchlng grantuptoa maximum of
$25,000 and a minimum of $5,000 per grant for eligible improvements. L __:_:_____:“
4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses 125,794

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

[EEIT  Checklist of Required Schedules

1

10

11

12a

13
14a

15

16

17

18

19

20a

21

Page 3

Is the organization described in section 501(0)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule A . 5 i o o s $oae o s w0

Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions .

Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposntlon to
candidates for public office? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part | .

Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part Il .

Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membershlp dues
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 If “Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part lif

Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If
“Yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 0 W @ @ m w8 b @

Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Il

Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? /f “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part Il R
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, Ime 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or
debt negotiation services? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IV

Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
orin quasi endowments? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part V .

If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes,” then complete Schedule D Parts VI
VIL VI, 1X, or X, as applicable.

Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 107 If “Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part VI : g ; i
Did the organization report an amount for investments— other securities in Part X Ilne 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 /f “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vil . ;=
Did the organization report an amount for investments —program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part Vill . % o8 0§
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 167 If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part IX 5 ¢ w

Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 257 If “Yes,” comp!ete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If “Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X
Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Parts Xi and Xii

Was the organization included in consolrdated mdependent audited flnanCEaI statements for the tax year'? If
“Yes,” and if the organization answered “No” to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional

Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i))? /f “Yes,"” complete Schedule E

Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?

Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaklng.
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts | and IV

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV W

Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If “Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts lil and V. oo
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions i on
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIIl, lines 1c and 8a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il .

Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII Ilne 9a’?

If “Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part Il

Did the organization operate one or more hospital facllitles'? If “Yes,” comp.’ete Schedu.’e H

If “Yes” to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?

Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column {A), line 1? If “Yes,” complete Schedule |, Parts I and Il

Yes | No
1| v
2 v
3 v
4 v
5 v
6 v
7 v
8 v
9 v
10 v
11a v
11b v
11c v
11d v
11e v
11f v
12a v
12b| v
13 Vv
14a v
14b Vv
15 v
16 v
17 v
18 v
19 v
20a v
20b
21 v

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)
ZEI1  Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)

Page 4

Yes | No
22  Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part 1X, column (A), line 27 If “Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts | and Il PR 22 | v
23 Did the organization answer “Yes" to Part VIl, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensatlon of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If “Yes,"” complete Schedule J . e e e e e e e e e e e e 23 | v
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If “Yes,” answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a . . . 24a ”
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? . 24b v
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? o w & e e 24¢ v
d Did the organization act as an “on behalf of” issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . 24d v
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part | : 25a v
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 890-EZ?
If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part ! . e e e e e e e e e e e e e 25h v
26  Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for recewables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part If 26 v
27  Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key
employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee
member, or to a 35% controlled entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these
persons? If “Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part Ill s wow s o e s 27 v
28  Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the followmg parties (see the Schedule L,
Part IV, instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee. creator or founder, or substantial contributor? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . . : i . 28a v
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a’? If “Yes,” comp.'ete Schedule L, Part IV 28b 4
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or orgamzatlons described in line 28a or 28b? If
“Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . c s % i s % T S P 28¢ v
29  Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contrlbutmns'? lf “Yes complete Schedule M 29 v
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or gqualified
conservation contributions? If “Yes,” complete Schedule M i = e W v o w 30 v
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operatlons’7 If “Yes,” complete Schedufe N, Part! | 31 v
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, d1spose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If “Yes,”
complete Schedule N, Part Il 32 v
33  Did the organization own 100% of an entity d:sregarded as separate from the organlzatlon under Regula’uons
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part | . a3 v
34  Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If “Yes,” complete Sc:hedule R Part It m
orlV, and Part V, line 1 § 0§ o5 B & N A a4 v
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 51 2(b)(1 3) 35a v
b If "Yes” to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transacnon wath a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If “Yes,” cornplete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 . 35b v
36  Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 , 36 v
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that isnota related organlzatlon
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If “Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI a7 v
38  Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
19? Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O . ] 28 | v
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part V s e ow L
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . . 1a
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable . . . 1b
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? 1c v

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

3a

4a

5a

6a

0T

Qo 0o Q

12a

13

14a

15

16

17

Page 5

Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued) Yes | No
Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return | 2a
if at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2b
Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . 3a v
If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If “No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O 3b
At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over,
a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a v
If “Yes,” enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114 Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . 5a v
Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b v
If “Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T7 ‘ 5¢c
Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100 000 and d|d the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? . 6a v
If “Yes,” did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contnbutlons or
gifts were not tax deductible? i @ on § % 9 3 6b
Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(::)
Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . s g 5 3 R R R ¢ B B & 7a v
If “Yes,” did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services prowded £ 7b
Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dlspose of tangible personal property for which |t was
required to file Form 82827 . . ¢ © o3 g 7c v
If “Yes,” indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed durlng theyear . . . 7d
Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premlums ona personal benefit contract? | 7e v
Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . 7f v
If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 7g v
If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? | 7h v
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during the year? . 8 v
Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 49667 . 9a v
Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b v
Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII, line 12 . . . . . 10a
Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facllltles : 10b
Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
Gross income from members or shareholders . . . 11a
Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or pa1d to other sources
against amounts due or received fromthem.) . . . . . . . . 11b
Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization flllng Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a
If “Yes,” enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year. . 12b
Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O
Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans T EEEEEREERE R 13b
Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . 13c
Did the organization receive any payments for |nd00r tannlng services durlng the tax year’? " : 14a v
If “Yes,” has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If “No," provide an explanation on Schedule O . 14b
Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? vom B OB B ; 15 v
If “Yes,” see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N.
Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? | 16 v
if “Yes,” complete Form 4720, Schedule O.
Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952, or 49537 g 17
if “Yes,” complete Form 6069.

Form 990 (2022)



Form 890 (2022) Page 6
=8l Governance, Management, and Disclosure. For each “Yes” response fo lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No”

response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.

ia

~N A

a

Check if Schedule O contains aresponse or note to any lineinthisPartVI . . . . . . . . . . . . . [
Section A. Governing Body and Management
Yes | No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax year. . 1a 7
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain on Schedule O.
Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent . 1b 7
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . 2 v
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarlly performed by or under the dlrect
supervision of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . 3 v
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed? 4 v
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets? , 5 v
Did the organization have members or stockholders? 6 v
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power ’io elect or appornt
one or more members of the governing body? 7a v

a
b
9

Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to {or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governing body? . . . . v 7b v
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or wrltten actlons undertaken durmg
the year by the following:

10a
b

The governing body? . . . e e e e e e e 8a | v

Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body‘? s s 8b | v

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at

the organization’s mailing address? If “Yes,” provide the names and addresses on Schedule O . . . . 9 v

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

Yes | No

Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . 10a v

If “Yes,” did the organization have written policies and procedures governmg the actlwt|es of such chapters

affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b

11a
b
12a
b
c

13

14
15

16a

Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? |11a| v
Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.

Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? /f “No,"go to line 13 . . . . 12a| o
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conﬂrcts‘? 12b| v
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If “Yes,”

describe on Schedule O how this wasdone. . . . e R E N E 12¢| o«
Did the organization have a written whistleblower pollcy? e e e e e e 13 | v
Did the organization have a written document retention and destructron pollcy? P 14 |
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by

independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . . . . . . . 15a| v
Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . e e e e e e 15b| v

If “Yes” to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O See rnstructrons

Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with a taxable entity during the year? . . . R R G i 16a v
If “Yes,” did the organization follow a written pollcy or procedure requiring the orgamzat:on to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed Ohio
Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, it applrcable) 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

0 ownwebsite [ Another’s website Upon request [ Other (explain on Scheduie O)

Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy,
and financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records.

Tracy Henao, Assistant City Manager. 10101 Montgomery Road. Montgomery, OH 45242, (513) 792.8312

Form 990 (2022



Form 990 (2022) Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl . . . . TR EERE
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization’s tax year.

= List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E}, and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of “key employee.”

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box & of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

» List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.
[l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

€}
Position
(A B E|
i . ®) {do not check more than one ©) € . ®
Name and title Average | pox, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week s =lol=lex|T from the from related compensation
(istany |22 |2 |Z|& |2 & |g |oroanization (W-2/ |crganizations (W-2/ from the
hoursfor |55 |2 (8 |e 5 ! 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
related |85 || - 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations| = & =) 2
h below % ; § 'g
dotted line) gl|a 2
o 2
g
_(1)__ Lee Ann Bissmeyer . LI
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
_(2) _MikeCappel 1
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
(3) Chris Dobrozsi 1
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
(4) Craig Margolis 1
Trustee 0 v 0 2400 0
(5) Ron Messer 1
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
(6) , SeshaMNaiman, :
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
(7). _KenSuer L
Trustee 0 v 0 1,200 0
{6). BrianRiblet !
Executive Director 0 v v 0 194,492 0
{9) TracyHemao ]
Assistant Director 0 v 0 140,584 0
(L)
e
2
A8
8

Form 990 (z022)



Form 990 (2022)

Page 8

=ET28"[[N Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(©)
Position
w . ®) {do not check more than one ©) ® . @
Name and title Average | phoy, unless person is both an Reportable Reportable Estimated amount
hours officer and a director/trustee) compensation compensation of other
per week eslslol=le o from the from related compensation
istany (28 |2 |Z|&|3& |9 |organization (W-2/|organizations (W-2/ from the
hoursfor [ 5|2 |8 e 233 1099-MISC/ 1099-MISC/ organization and
@ O L 0w | @
related g. c "g" ,5} § bl [ 1099-NEC) 1099-NEC) related organizations
organizations| 5 & | ® =) [}
below é § ?g ‘§
dotted line) T|a 3
z 1
&
as._____. -
as_____.
Qa7 _
A8
as._____.
20 e
21)
)
@3)
@4
@) . u
1b Subtotal = 344,676
c Total from contlnuatlon sheets to Part VII Sectuon A 0
d Total (add lines 1b and 1c) . 344,676
2  Total number of individuals (includin but not Ilmlted to those ||sted above who received more than $100,000 of
g
reportable compensation from the organization 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such individual & 3 v
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensatlon from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000?7 If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
individual . 4 | v
5  Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such person . . . . . . 5 v

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent co

ntractors that received more than $100,000 of

compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax year.

(A)
Name and business address

(B) (C)
Description of services Compensation

None

2  Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to th
received more than $100,000 of compensation from the organization

ose listed above) who
0

Form 990 (2022)



Form 890 (2022)

Page 9

=ETgd'lllll Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII . |
(A) (B) (D)
Total revenue Related or exempt Revenue excluded

function revenue | business revenue

from tax under
sections 512-514

@ »| 1a Federated campaigns . . . . 1a
& E b Membershipdues . . . . . |1b
o E ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . . ic
£ f d Related organizations . . . 1d
5_ g e Government grants {contrlbutlons) 1e
a & f Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
% 5 and similar amounts not included above | 1f
2 g g Noncash contributions included in
£ lines1a-1f. . . . « . . . 1g
8 S| h Total Add lines 1a-1f . 175,000
8 |2
Sol b
N c c
ES| ¢ T .
] I - -
2 e .
a f All other program service revenue .
g Total. Add lines 2a-2f .
3 Investment income (including dlwdends |nterest and
other similar amounts) . ¢ oW ow 8
4  Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties . E
{i} Real
6a Grossrents . . | 6a
b Less: rental expenses | 6b
¢ Rental income or {loss) | 6¢
d Net rental income or (loss) .
7a Gross amount from ()} Securities
sales of assets
other than inventory | 7a
e b Less: cost or other basis
£ and sales expenses . | 7b
2 ¢ Gainor(oss) . .| 7c
E d Net gain or (loss)
§ 8a Gross income from fundraising
o events (not including$
of contributions reported on line
1c). See Part IV, line18 . . . 8a
b Less: direct expenses . . . 8b
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundralsmg eve
9a Gross income from gaming
activities. See Part IV, line 19 . 9a
b Less: directexpenses . . . 9b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gamlng activities .
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances . . . |40a
b Less:costofgoodssold . . . |[10b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory .
g
E g 11{6} _______
L)
33| c
@ X d Allother revenue .
= e Total. Add lines 11a-11d .
12 Total revenue. See instructions 175,000

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022) Page 10

F1ad) @ Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartIX . . . . . . . . . . . . . [
Do not include amounts rep orted on lines 6b, 7b, Total ESXA;])enses Prcgra‘n?)service Manage(eﬁ}ent and Funé?a]isin
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. expenses general expenses expensesg

1  Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments, See Part IV, line 21

2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . ., . . |, 89,794

3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and
foreign individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16

4  Benefits paid to or for members

5 Compensation of current officers, dlreotors
trustees, and key employees

6  Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons {as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c){3)(B) .

7  Other salaries and wages
8  Pension plan accruals and contrlbutlons (mclude
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)

9  Other employee benefits .

10  Payroll taxes . 3
11 Fees for services (nonemployees)
Management

Legal

Accounting i % &% % % % %
Lobbying . . . 36,000
Professional fundralsmg services, See Part IV Ilne 17

Investment management fees
Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.)

"o a0 0o

12  Advertising and promotion
13  Office expenses
14 Information technology

15  Royalties .
16  Occupancy
17 Travel .

18  Payments of travel or entertalnment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials

19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings

20  Interest e @ s

21 Payments to affiliates .

22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortlzatlon

23 Insurance . § 0y ow & % & % & %

24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. {List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A), amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)

Q0T

25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 125,794

26  Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B} joint costs
from a combined educational campaign _and
fundraising solicitation. Check here [ if
following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 (2022)

Balance Sheet

Page 11

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X : O
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash—non-interest-bearing v oE 2,056,479 1 2,123,757
2 Savings and temporary cash investments . 2
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 3
4  Accounts receivable, net A 4
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former oﬁlcer dlrector
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 356%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as deﬂned
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 6
& | 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
ﬁ 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
< | 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D . . . |40a
b Less: accumulated depreciation . . . . . [10b 10c
11  Investments —publicly traded securities 11
12  Investments—other securities. See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets. See Part IV, ||ne 11 i ou 15
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal llne 33) 2,056,479 16 2,123,757
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses . 3,000| 17 3,000
18 Grants payable . 18 18,072
19 Deferred revenue i w 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities . 20
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Par’: IV of Schedule D 21
4 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
= trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 29
= | 23  Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related thlrd
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D ; 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 : 3,000 26 21,072
@ Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here .
e and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
=127 Net assets without donor restrictions 2,053,479 27 2,102,685
g 28 Net assets with donor restrictions 28
= Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958 check here |:|
t and complete lines 29 through 33.
© | 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds . ; 29
§ 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund 30
2 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
% |32 Total net assets or fund balances . : 2,053,479| 32 2,102,685
Z | 33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances : 2,056.479] 33 2,123,757

Form 990 (2022)



Form 990 {2022)
ET9 AN Reconciliation of Net Assets

Page i2

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI

O

WO~ A GN=

—

Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) .

175,000

125,794

Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from line 1

49,206

Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X Ilne 32 column (A))

2,053,479

Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments

0

Donated services and use of facilities

Investment expenses .

Prior period adjustments . . ”
Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explaln on Schedule O}

O~ (|0 |5 0N =],

olo|lc|c

Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X I|ne
32, column (B)) .

-
o

2,102,685

ETa®dIN Financial Statements and Reportmg

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI|

O

2a

3a

Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: [] Cash Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked “Other,” explain on
Schedule O.

Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? .

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

[]Separate basis [ ] Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant?

If “Yes,” check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audlted on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:

Separate basis [ ] Consolidated basis [] Both consolidated and separate basis

If “Yes” to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of
the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant?

If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on
Schedule O.

As a result of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? .

If “Yes,” did the organization undergo the required audit or audlts'? ]f the organlzatlon dld not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits .

Yes | No

2a

2b

2c

3a

v

3b

v

Form 990 @o22)



| OMB No. 1545-0047

2022

Open to Public

SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support
(Form 990)

Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4347(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Montgomery Community Improvement Corporation 31-1132938

IEZEIN  Reason for Public Charity Status. (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 [J A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b){1}{A)(i).
2 [ A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
3 [ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
4 [ A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital’s name, city, and state:
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section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part Il.)

6 [ Afederal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170{b)(1){A)(v).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public

described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part 1.

[J A community trust described in section 170(b)(1){A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

9 [Oan agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 [] An organization that normally receives (1) more than 3371% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33's% of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part IIl.)

11 [] An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 [ An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box on lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.

a [ Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b [0 Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c [ Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d [0 Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e [ Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type Il
functionally integrated, or Type Il non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

=+

f Enter the number of supported organizations . . . . . . . . . |:|
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN {iii) Type of organization | {iv} Is the organization | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 |listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No
(A)
(B)
©
(D)
(E)
Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 11285F Schedule A (Form 990} 2022



Schedule A (Form 990) 2022

Page 2

Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A){vi)

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part Ill. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 (b) 2019 (c) 2020 (d) 2021 (e) 2022 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any “unusual grants.”)
2  Taxrevenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf
3  The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .
4  Total. Add lines 1 through 3
5  The portion of total contributions by
each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount
shown on line 11, column (f} .
6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2018 {b) 2019 (c) 2020 {d) 2021 (e) 2022 {f) Total
7  Amounts from line 4 '
8  Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources . e
9  Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carried on . .
10  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.) . .o
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10
12  Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) .. 12 ]
13  First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth or ﬂfth tax year as a section 501( )(3)

organization, check this box and stop here O
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14  Public support percentage for 2022 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f)) . 14 %
15  Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14 15 %
16a 33'3% support test—2022, |f the organization did not check the box on Ilne 13 and I1ne 14 is 335% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization gualifies as a publicly supported organization O
b 33's% support test—2021, If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and Iine 15 is 33113% or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . O
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2022. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization . v o o 5 . O
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2021. if the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part VI how the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies asa public]y supported
organization . O
18  Private foundation. If the organlzation d|d not check a box on Ime 13 16a 16b 17a or ‘ITb check this box and see

instructions

E

Schedule A (Form 980) 2022



Schedule A (Form 990) 2022

I  Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

Page 3

(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.

If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part |1}

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in)

1

2

7a

c
8

Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees
received. (Do not include any “unusual grants.”)
Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose .

Gross receipts from activities that are not an
unrelated trade or business under section 513

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge .

Total. Add lines 1 through 5 .
Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3
received from disqualified persons

Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than disqualified
persons that exceed the greater of $5,000
or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

Add lines 7a and 7b
Public support. (Subtract line 7c from
line 6. .

(a) 2018

(b) 2018

(c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022 (f) Total

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in}

9
10a

11

12

13

14

Amounts from line 6

Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans, rents,
royalties, and income from similar sources .

Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1875 .

Add lines 10a and 10b

Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b, whether
or not the business is regularly carried on
Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(Explain in Part VI.) . .

Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,
and 12.) : 3

(a) 2018

(b) 2019

{c) 2020

(d) 2021

(e) 2022 (f) Total

First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here [l
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15  Public support percentage for 2022 (line 8, column (f}, divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part Ill, line 15 . 16 %
Section D, Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17  Investment income percentage for 2022 (line 10¢, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . 17 %
18  Investment income percentage from 2021 Schedule A, Part lll, line 17 . 18 %
19a 335% support tests—2022, If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and Iane 15 is more than 33'3%, and line
17 is not more than 33'3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization O
b 33'3% support tests—2021, If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33'3%, and
line 18 is not more than 3312%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization O
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions [l

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022



Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part |. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked box 12b, Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12¢, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)

Page a

Section A. All Supporting Organizations

1

3a

4a

ba

9a

10a

Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain.

Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2).

Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes,"” answer
lines 3b and 3c below.

Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c){4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination.

Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use.

Was any supported organization not organized in the United States (“foreign supported organization”)? /f
“Yes,” and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below.

Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? /f “Yes,” describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations.

Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If “Yes,” explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes.

Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If “Yes,”
answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed, (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(tii) the authority under the organization’s organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document).

Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization’s organizing document?

Substitutions only, Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control?

Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ji) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity
with regard to a substantial contributor? If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990).

Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line
77 If “Yes,” complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 980}.

Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations
described in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If “Yes,” provide detail in Part VI.

Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If “Yes,” answer line 10b below.

Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.)

Yes

No

3a

3b

3c

4a

4b

4c

5a

5b

5c

9a

9b

9c

10a

10b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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ETHdA  Supporting Organizations (continued)
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Page 5

Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?

a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and

11¢ below, the governing body of a supported organization?

b A family member of a person described on line 11a above?
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? If “Yes” to line 11a, 11b, or 11¢,

provide detail in Part VI.

Yes

No

11a

11b

11c

Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? If “No,” describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effactively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year.

Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If “Yes,” explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization.

Yes

No

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? If “No,” describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s).

Yes

No

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (i) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided?

Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If “No,” explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s).

By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have
a significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role the organization’s
supported organizations played in this regard.

Yes

No

3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations

1

2

a

Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).

[ The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.

b [[]The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
[] The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental entity (see instructions).

[+

a

Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below.

Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes,” then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities.

Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization's
involvement, one or more of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If
“Yes,” explain in Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would
have engaged in these activities but for the organization’s involvement.

Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.

Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? If “Yes” or “No,” provide details in Part VI.

Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If “Yes,” describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard.

Yes

No

2a

2b

3a

3b

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 [ Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A—Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

L RER AR B

D |EiWIN| =

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or collection
of gross income or for management, conservation, or maintenance of
property held for production of income (see instructions)

)]

7

Other expenses (see instructions)

~J

8

Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B—Minimum Asset Amount

{A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
{optional)

1

Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

Average monthly cash balances

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c})

o|al0|oTw

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors
(explain in detail in Part Vi).

M

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

N

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w

£y

Cash deemed held for exempt use, Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,
see instructions).

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Muitiply line 5 by 0.035.

~|{;|

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

-]

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

RV|I~ND| O~

Section C—Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

OB (WM =

([N |=

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

~

[ Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Il supporting organization

(see instructions).

Schedule A (Form 9980) 2022
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Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations {continued)

Section D—Distributions

Current Year

Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

-

N =~

Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported

organizations, in excess of income from activity

Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required —provide details in Part Vi)

Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

~N ||| a|WN

@~ (|0

Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive

(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

[+2]

w

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

10

Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount

10

Section E—~Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

@i

Excess Distributions

(ii)

Underdistributions

Pre-2022

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2022

Distributable amount for 2022 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2022
(reasonable cause required—explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

w

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2022

From 2017

From 2018

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Carryover from 2017 not applied (see instructions)

=|=lF|Q|=o|ajo|o|

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

E-N

Distributions for 2022 from
Section D, line 7: 3

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2022 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2022, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2022. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, expfain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2023. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2018

Excess from 2019 .

Excess from 2020 .

Excess from 2021

00T

Excess from 2022 .

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part I, line 17a or 17b; Part
I, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 53, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11¢; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a, and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

Schedule A (Form 990) 2022
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SOHEDULE » Compensation Information | o, A45: k7
(Form 980) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest 2 @22
Compensated Employees
Complete if the organization answered “Yes"” on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. :
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ubhc
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Montgomery Community Improvement Corporation 31-1132938
I Questions Regarding Compensation
Yes | No
1ia Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part Il to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
[ First-class or charter travel [[1 Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[] Travel for companions ] Payments for business use of personal residence
[] Tax indemnification and gross-up payments [ Health or social club dues or initiation fees
[ Discretionary spending account [ Personal services (such as maid, chauffeur, chef)
b If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If “No,” complete Part 1l to
B¥plain: & & v v = & W ow o ow o e A W % R R s W e 8 % ¥ e & % % wm e m ib
2 Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line
TAZ s + & o ¢ = 4 & w o w oAy o AY W @ S e B 8 & U e W R % W % & % 4w & g 2
3 Indicate which, if any, of the following the organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's GEQ/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part lIl.
[] Compensation committee ] Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant [] Compensation survey or study
[] Form 990 of other organizations [ Approval by the board or compensation committee
4 During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VIl, Secticn A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:
a Receive a severance payment or change-of-control payment? . . . e % B B U a8 0§ 4a v
b Participate in or receive payment from a supplemental nonqualified retlrement p]an‘? A 4b v
c Participate in or receive payment from an equity-based compensation arrangement? . . . . . 4c v
If “Yes” to any of lines 4a—c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III.
Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.
5  For persons listed on Form 990, Part VIl, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:
aTheorganization’P..............................5a v
b Any related organization? . . . T T 5b v
If “Yes” on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part III
6 For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:
a Theorganization? . . . . . . . . . . o . o o e e e e e e e 6a >
b Any related organization? . . . T T 6b v
if “Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part III
7  For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If “Yes,” describeinPartiil . . . . . . . . . . . . . 7 v
8  Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VI|, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject
to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If “Yes,” describe
BAR I o i me o 8 ¢ = 5 5 s 4 e one me 8 8 % 8 4 B G W S M B £ & @ @ % om 8 v
9 If “Yes” on line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in
Regulations section 53.4958-6(C)7 . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e 9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 980. Cat. No. 50053T Schedule J {Form 990) 2022



Schedule J (Form 990) 2022

[ Part |

Page 2

Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (ij). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (B){i{iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual.

(A) Name and Title

{B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1089-MISC and/or 1099-NEC compensation

(i) Base
compensation

(if) Bonus & incentive
compensation

{iii) Other
reportable
compensation

(C) Retirement and
other deferred
compensation

(D} Nontaxable
benefits

{E) Total of columns

B0

(F) Compensation
in column (B) reported
as deferred on prior
Form 990

1

Lee Ann Bissmeyer, Trustee

i)
(i)

1,200

2

Mike Cappel, Trustee

U}
{in

3

Chris Debrozsi, Trustee

@i
(ii)

4

Craig Margolis, Trustee

(i)
(ii)

5

Ron Messer, Trustee

U]
{ii)

6

Sasha Naiman, Trustee

@i
(i)

1,200

7

Ken Suer, Trustee

@
(i)

1,200

8

Brian Riblet, Executive Director

(i)

194,492

9

Tracy Henao, Assistant Director

(i)
(i

140,584

10

U]
(i)

"

12

13

14

15

(i
(i)

16

(i
(i)

Schedule J (Form 990) 2022
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Page 3
=l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il
for any additional information.

. Also complete this part

The MCIC uses an independent compensation consultant, written employment contracts and compensation studies. All compensation requires approval by the

City of Montgomery City Council.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2022



SCHEDULE O
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2022

Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form3980 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
Montgomery Community Improvement Corporation 31-1132938
_\!_I_]_1_.:a_-_MCIC_ has provided a complete copy of the Form 990 prior to filing the return. . .

VI 19 - Documents are included as part of the audit and are also available online or on demand at the City of Montgomery.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat. No. 51056K Schedule O (Form 990) 2022



These Minutes are a draft of the proposed minutes from the Financial Planning Committee of City Council
meeting. They do not represent the official record of proceedings until formally adopted by the
Government Affairs Committee of City Council,

City of Montgomery
Financial Planning Committee Meeting
December 5, 2022

Present Council Committee Members Present
Brian Riblet, City Manager Ken Suer, Chair

Tracy Henao, Asst. City Manager Mike Cappel

Chris Bigham, Interim Finance Director Lee Ann Bissmeyer

Connie Gaylor, Clerk of Council

The Financial Planning Committee of Council convened its meeting for December 5, 2022 at 4:30
p.m. at City Hall with Mr. Suer presiding.

November 2022 Income Tax Report

Mr. Bigham explained that for the month of November, the City’s total income tax receipts were
$623,842 which is a decrease of $58,706 or (8.6%) when compared to the 2021 November
collections of $682,548. Year-to-date revenue has increased by 12.91% over 2021 collections; and
16.5% over year-to-date estimate.

Mr. Bigham stated that November 2022 withholding collections were $566,427; a decrease of
$72,188 or (11.30%) when compared to November 2021 collections of $638,614. The majority of
the variance is due to a large volume of payments received in November of 2021 when compared
to November 2022. Year-to-date withholding collections are up by 9.13%.

Mr. Bigham stated in November 2022, net profits from businesses located within or doing business
within Montgomery were $15,448. This is an increase of $338 or 2.24% when compared to
November 2021 collections of $15,110. All business returns have been posted and revenue remains
up at 63.66% for the year.

Mr. Bigham stated revenues of $41,968 were collected in November 2022 from residents living in
Montgomery, which is an increase of $13,144 or 45.60% when compared to November 2021
collections of $28,823.95. Year-to-date individual revenue is 11.36% over 2021 collections.

Investment Policy Proposed Amendment

Mr. Bigham explained that the City’s current investment policy requires the annual review of the
policy by the Financial Planning Committee and any modifications must be approved by City
Council.

Mr. Bigham explained the current investment policy was reviewed against the Government Finance
Officers Association (GFOA) example investment policy and the current policy conforms to the
GFOA best practices. He stated there is one proposed change to the policy in section 12.0,
Maximum Maturities. The section includes in letter ‘B’ that certificates of deposits (CD) shall not
exceed one year. However, current practice is to include CDs in the diversification of investments
for up to five years. The proposed change to the policy is to delete letter ‘B’ to allow CDs to have
up to a five-year term which is the normal and best practice. In the current interest rate



These Minutes are a draft of the proposed minutes from the Financial Planning Committee of City Council
meeting. They do not represent the official record of proceedings until formally adopted by the
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environment, the longer the term, the higher the interest rate. This proposed changed will increase
the annual rate of return on CDs.

After discussion, Mr. Cappel moved to strike 12.0, Item B from the policy. Mrs. Bissmeyer seconded.
The Committee unanimously agreed.

Proposed Year End Transfers and Appropriations to the 2022 Budget

Mr. Bigham explained that as of the November 30 review of appropriations, there are transfers and
appropriations requested to align appropriation with estimated year end expenditures. The
attachment has three sections and includes a fund transfer section, an appropriation reduction
section, and an additional appropriation section.

Mr. Bigham explained that Section One includes a transfer of $61,000 from the General Fund 101to
the Compensated Absences Fund 875 and is requested per policy to transfer unused budgeted
leave payouts upon retirement when employees do not retire to fund future retirement expenses.
Section Two includes a reduction of appropriation in Fund 324 General Bond Retirement Fund by
$375,000 as there are no principal payments due in FY 2022. Section Three includes appropriation
adjustments for all funds. The General Fund transfers include two intradepartmental transfers for
the Parks and Recreation Departments utilizing personnel savings of $2,000 in each department
to cover additional contract services costs for both departments. There is also a request for
additional appropriation of $92,700 in the General Fund for increased contract services for the
Swaim and Terwilliger Lodges Department ($2,400), special projects increased costs for the City
Beautiful Department ($300), and contract services in the Finance Department ($90,000).

Mr. Bigham explained that for restricted funds, there are seven funds that require additional
appropriation to cover current expenditures. Fund 324 General Bond Retirement and Fund 410
Capital Improvement Fund need additional appropriations of $2,000 and $35,000 respectively for
increased income tax refunds. Fund 328 Reserve of Montgomery Bond Fund needs an additional
appropriation of $389,030 which represents the refund amount to homeowners for assessment
overpayments as approved by City Council in November. Fund 460 Heritage District Fund needs
$30,000 related to the parking lot lease. Fund 461 Triangle TIF Fund needs $1,500 related to
increased school board payments based on actual collections. Fund 875 needs an additional
$30,245 for retirements of four employees. $75,000 is budgeted but actual expenditures are
$105,245 for FY 2022. Fund 890 Unclaimed Moneys Fund needs an additional $1,000 for a check
that was cashed in the current fiscal year.

After discussion, Mr. Cappel made a motion to approve the proposed transfers as noted. Mrs.
Bissmeyer seconded. The Committee unanimously agreed.

Adjustments to the Proposed 2023 Operating Budget

Mr. Bigham explained that since the release of the Proposed Budget, revenue estimates have been
adjusted based on actual collections and changing market conditions. The State of Ohio updated
its Local Government Fund estimates from $165,000 to $189,000 resulting in an increase of
$24,000 in General Fund revenue. Investment/account interest income has also increased by
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$560,000 as the result of increased interest rates on interest bearing accounts and investments.
Pooled interest of investments is now receipting primarily in the General Fund to provide greater
flexibility in the use of interest revenue. Refunds and reimbursements revenue has increased by
$250,000 due to a large account balance in the City’s Miami Valley Risk Management Association
(MVRMA) account balance. The current balance is about $600,000 so a refund of $250,000 will
be received in early 2023 to reduce the balance to $350,000 which is a healthy balance for the
account. Finally, the Transfers-In line has been reduced by $389,029 due to no longer budgeting
for a transfer-in from Fund 328 Reserve Bond Retirement Account for overpayment of
assessments. The net increase in revenue is $444,971. He stated there is one expenditure increase
of $50,000 related to the amendment with Rumpke Ohio for an increased cost of waste disposal
services. Based on the proposed changes, total revenue is $13,361,775 and total expenditures are
$13,228,265 resulting in a projected fund balance increase of $133,510 for the FY 2023 Budget.

Mr. Bigham explained there are changes to three special revenue funds. First, Fund 275, Municipal
Pool is enacting fee increases that result in an increase of $30,000 in revenue. There is also an
increase to the pool operations contract in the amount of $30,000 based on the negotiated
amendment. There is no change in the estimated year end fund balance. Second, there is a
decrease of a transfer out of $389,029 in Fund 328 Reserve Bond Retirement due to issuing refunds
for overpayments of assessments. The fund balance will be zero since there are no longer
assessments being collected. Third, Fund 461 Triangle TIF Fund has an estimated expenditure
increase of $2,000 related to the increase school board payment based on actual 2022 collections.
The year end fund balance is projected to be $67,308 after this adjustment.

After discussion, Mr. Cappel moved for approval of the proposed changes. Mrs. Bissmeyer
seconded. The Committee unanimously agreed.

Update to Regional Income Tax Authority (RITA) Plan

Mr. Bigham explained since our last update, we engaged RITA staff and the City’s tax staff to
develop a proposed transition plan that would have minimal impact on the residents of
Montgomery. After discussion, if the City is to transition to RITA, the effective date would be July
1, 2023, to allow staff to have enough time to process filings for the 2022 tax year that is due by
April 2023 and also allot the necessary time to work through various contracts and approvals to
execute an agreement. RITA provided the City with examples of an agreement for participation,
billing to cities, entries for the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), RITA rules and
regulations, and samples of collection memos. These documents will be provided at the meeting
for your review and specific documents would be drafted for Council approval to contract with
RITA. Staff reviewed these documents and found no issues or concerns with the information.

Mr. Bigham explained that RITA’s fees are 3% of collections with a reconciliation of fees and a
refund for savings in May of the following collection year. Based on information received from
RITA and various municipalities, the cost of RITA services ranges from 1.4% to 2.5% of collections.
The proposed cost of RITA is similar to the current budget, with the budget neutral rate of 1.9%. In
other words, if RITA charges the City 1.9% or less, there is no additional expense for the service.

There will be a collection delay during the first year of RITA services. RITA collects earnings taxes
and remits the revenue in the following month. For the first year of operation, the City would
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collect only 11 months of earnings tax. If the contract were cancelled or not renewed, the last year
would include an additional month of collections. As a result, this is a timing issue and not an
additional cost of RITA.

Mr. Suer stated that he felt delaying the start date until July of 2023 made sense and gives time for
staff to be prepared for the changes in the processes in the Tax Department. He stated that while
he was not originally in favor of contracting with RITA he sees the positive pointes of reduced
workforce challenges, possibility of retaining customer service approach here locally, and that the
fees look acceptable at this time. He stated that he feels this falls in line with other outsource
contracts. He stated because of these things he is in favor of contracting with RITA.

Mr. Cappel stated that he feels some roles should only be done by government, but he sees that
we have no other options due to the labor pool.

Mrs. Bissmeyer stated that she feels the enforcement part of the collection should be done by the
City but understands that we are faced with workforce challenges. She stated that she feels that
there will be individuals and businesses who do like the convenience of the online services.

Mr. Riblet explained that after the first presentation by RITA staff reached out to other
organizations who have contracted with RITA and the representatives from RITA to feel this is the
right way to go. He stated that staff may bring legislation to the February Work Session for
discussion and to the March Business Session for approval in order to begin advertising the change
in the bulletin in plenty of time for the July rollout.

Mr. Suer stated that we need to bring it to residents’ attention that they do have options of still
coming in house or filing electronically.

Mrs. Bissmeyer asked what the term of the contract would be.

Mr. Bigham replied that it is ongoing until one of the parties separates. He stated there is no penalty
for cancelling the contract.

Mr. Cappel made a motion of support for the contract with RITA and to advise staff to submit the
contract legislation to City Council for approval. Mrs. Bissmeyer seconded. The Committee
unanimously agreed.

Other Business

Mr. Riblet explained to the Committee that just like the focus on the mental health of our staff he
considers that a segway to their financial wellness as well. He explained that he met with a
representative from Equitable Triple Crown Wealth Management who have offered to meet with
staff to offer advice on how to utilize ICMA/Ohio Deferred Compensation savings programs. He
added that these programs would now be included Roth 457 plans and that this firm could help to
explain the difference in the programs to staff. He stated that if staff feels it prudent to move
forward with this that legislation would be brought before Council as another option for staff. He
added there was no fee or long term commitment with this potential partnership.
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Mr. Suer asked if this company was working with other entities.

Mr. Riblet stated that they are and that in fact some employees here have spouses that are working
with them from other entities.

Mr. Cappel stated that representatives from Social Security will come in and help to advise
employees as well.

Mr. Riblet replied that is something he could look into as well.

Minutes

Mr. Cappel moved to accept the minutes of the October 3, 2022 meeting of the Financial Planning
Committee as written. Mrs. Bissmeyer seconded. The Committee unanimously agreed.

Adjournment

Mrs. Bissmeyer moved for adjournment. Mr. Cappel seconded. The Committee unanimously
agreed.

The Financial Planning Committee of Council was adjourned at 5:33 p.m.

Chair



